
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

3945	Rio	Road,	Carmel,	CA	 93923		

 
July 25, 2019 

Thursday 
9:00AM 

 

 
 
 
 

 

1

1



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

1 

 

  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT   

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
June 27, 2019 

 
 

	
CALL	TO	ORDER	‐	ROLL	CALL	‐ The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.				
	
Present:		 Directors: Greg D’Ambrosio, Michael Rachel, Robert Siegfried  

and Charlotte Townsend 
 
Absent:		 President: Ken White   
 
Others:	 			Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 

   Rachel Lather, Principal Engineer, CAWD  
   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
 Ed Waggoner, Operations Superintendent, CAWD 
 Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
 Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD 
 Mark Dias, Safety/Regulatory Compliance Administrator I 
 Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
    Robert Rathie, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD Legal Counsel 
    Peter McKee, President, Pebble Beach Community Service District (PBCSD) 
    Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 
 Richard Youngblood, President, Water Awareness Committee 
 Paul Deering, Owner, Deering Design 
     

1. Appearances/Public Comments: Anyone wishing to address the Board on a matter 

not appearing on the agenda may do so now. Public comment shall be limited to 3 minutes 

per person. No action shall be taken on any  item not appearing on the agenda.  During 

consideration of any agenda item, public comment shall be limited to 3 minutes per person 

and will be allowed prior to Board action on the item under discussion. Note:  If you believe 

you possess any disability that would require special accommodations in order to attend this 

meeting, please call Carmel Area Wastewater District at 624‐1248. 

2.  Agenda  Changes: Any  requests  to move an  item  forward on  the agenda will  be 

considered at this time. 

Ms. Buikema requested two item changes: 

 Move Agenda Item #33 directly after the Public Hearing 

2

2



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

2 

 

 Add General Managers Comments just before Item #34 
 
There was Board consensus to move Item #33 after the Public Hearing and before the 
Consent Calendar, and to add the General Manager comments before Item #34. 

 

ACTION	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD 

Action  Items  consist  of  business which  requires  a  vote by  the  Board. These  items  are 
acted upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) 
Public Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

 

OTHER	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD	

3.		Water	Awareness	Committee:         

Monterey Bay Area Presentation Of A County-Wide Water Wise Habits and Pollution 
Prevention Video Contest Award. Presentation Of Award To Local High-School Student. 
Monterey Bay Area-Wide Save Water Video Contest Memo. 

	
Informational	Only‐	the	student	was	not	able	to	attend.		Mr.	Youngblood	was	present	for	the	

recognition. 
 
4. Receive Staff Report for Sewer Rates for fiscal Year 2019-20. Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,	
General	Manager 

 
Director Siegfried requested initiation of contact with a 3rd party for rate model analysis and 
development.  General Manager Buikema suggested conferring with staff Engineers and the 
initiation of contact with a 3rd party, to occur in the Fall of 2019. 

 

PUBLIC	HEARING 

Public	Hearing	which	Opened	At	9:12	am	or	as	Soon	Thereafter	As	The	Matters	
May	Be	Taken	Up.		

	
President Pro Tem Siegfried opened the meeting for public comment. 

 
A member of the public, Paul Deering, extended his appreciation of CAWD and General 
Manager Buikema’s Lagoon work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3

3



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

3 

 

5.	ORDINANCES		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 							
Ordinance	No.	2019‐04; An Ordinance Establishing Sewer Service Charges For Fiscal Year 
2019-20 And Thereafter, Providing For the Collection Of Such Charges On The Tax Roll, And 
Providing Further That This Ordinance And The Charges Established Hereby And The Tax 
Collection Procedure Selected Herein Shall Remain In Effect Until Either The Said Charges 
Are Revised Or This Ordinance Is Otherwise Amended Or Repealed-Report	 By	 Barbara	
Buikema,	General	Manager 
 
 

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	
Townsend	the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Ordinance	No.	2019‐04	establishing	
Sewer	Service	Charges	for	Fiscal	Year	2019‐20	and	thereafter,	providing	for	the	
collection	of	such	charges	on	the	tax	roll,	and	providing	further	that	this	
Ordinance	and	the	charges	established	hereby	and	the	tax	collection	procedure	
selected	herein	shall	remain	in	effect	until	either	the	said	charges	are	revised	or	
this	Ordinance	is	otherwise	amended	or	repealed.	

 
The	hearing	was	closed	at	9:15	a.m.	and	there	was	no	majority	protest	received.			

 

33.	CAWD Website Update Presentation- By	Safety	Administrator/Regulatory	Compliance,	
Mark	Dias.    

Maintenance Superintendent, Chris Foley, provided a brief background regarding the 
necessity to update CAWD’s current website and introduced Mark Dias, Safety 
Administrator.                   

Mark Dias gave a presentation on the new CAWD website.   The project team solicited vendor 
bids and decided on Streamline. Streamline specializes in special districts and is well suited 
to service the needs of our district and satisfy special district legal requirements and best 
practices for transparency and disclosure.  Mr. Dias stated that over the next quarter the 
project team will build the new website, initially tackling key topics, followed by each 
department handling their respective portions of the website, with final website approval 
coming from General Manager, Barbara Buikema.  Mr. Dias also showed the functionality of 
the website with a brief walkthrough of the “sandbox” version of the new website.  
 
Director Rachel commented on concerns with the public being able to interface and transact 
business directly on the website in lieu of coming into office.  Chris Foley & Daryl Lauer both 
commented that this new website is a great platform to move toward that ability, but at the 
present stage we are focused on getting the website created and moving forward, CAWD will 
have the ability to develop the website to include those capabilities.  

 
 
 
 

4

4



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

4 

 

CONSENT	CALENDAR:	APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES,	 FINANCIAL	
STATEMENTS	AND	MONTHLY	REPORTS	
The Consent Agenda consists of routine items for which Board approval can be taken with a 
single motion and vote. A Board Member may request that any item be placed on the Regular 
Agenda for separate consideration. 
 
 

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Rachel	and	seconded	by	Director	D’Ambrosio,	the	Board	
unanimously	approved	the	Regular	Meeting	Minutes	of	May	30th,	2019,	and	enacted	the	
following	Consent	Calendar	items:	
	

 

6.  Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes for May 30,2019  
                                                             	
7.		Receive and the Accept Bank Statement Review by Hayashi Wayland – 

May 2019 
 
8.  Receive and Accept Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements –                                       

May 2019 
 
9.  Approve Register of Disbursements - Carmel Area Wastewater District –                    
       May 2019 

10.  Approve Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project – 
May 2019  

	
11.  Receive and Accept Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules –       

       May 2019  

Director Siegfried requested that this item be moved to the end of the agenda.  

12.  Receive and Accept Collection System Superintendent’s Report -   
March, April & May 2019                

    
13.  Receive and Accept Safety And Regulatory Compliance Report- 

May 2019       
            	
14.  Receive and Accept Treatment Facility Operations Report –          
											 May, April & March 2019          

15.  Receive and Accept Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report –        
            May 2019         
  

5

5



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

5 

 

16. Receive and Accept Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan–        
         May 2019  
 
17. Receive and Accept Plant Operations Report – May 2019 
        
18. Receive and Accept Maintenance Projects Report – May 2019 
       	
19. Receive Principal Engineer’s Monthly Report General Engineering – May 2019        
        

ACTION	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD 

Action  Items  consist  of  business which  requires  a  vote by  the  Board. These  items  are 
acted upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) 
Public Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

	
RESOLUTIONS	

20.	Resolution	No.	2019‐21; A Resolution Specifying The District Sewer Connection     
And Annexation Fees, As Adopted By Ordinance No. 85-2, Commencing  
July 1,	2019– Report	by	General	Manager,	Barbara	Buikema 
	
The connection fee model recommends an increase to $4,646.04 or an increase of $110.22.  
Staff recommends revisiting the calculation after the close of the fiscal year 2018-19 audit. 

 
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Townsend	and	seconded	by	Director	Rachel,	
the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐21.	

	
21.	Resolution	No.	2019‐22; A Resolution Certifying Compliance with State Law With        
Respect To The Levying Of General and Special Taxes, Assessments and Property Related 
Fees and Charges– Report	by General	Manager,	Barbara	Buikema 
	

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Rachel	and	seconded	by	Director	D’Ambrosio,	

the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐22.	
	
22.	Resolution	No.	2019‐23; A Resolution Determining The Fiscal Year 2019-20          
Tax Proceeds Appropriation Limitation For the Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Report	by General	Manager,	Barbara	Buikema 	
 

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Townsend	and	seconded	by	Director	
D’Ambrosio,	the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐23.	

	

6

6



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

6 

 

23.	Resolution	No.	2019‐24; A Resolution Authorizing The Adoption of Carmel Area       
Wastewater District’s Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year 2019-20            
Report	by General	Manager,	Barbara	Buikema	
	
The final 2019-20 Budget was presented.  The General Manager suggested reading The 
Budget Message, which is in the front of both volumes, for a summary of the document.  
Changes to the preliminary budget are listed on page 107.   
 
Director D’ Ambrosio states that his understanding of page 105-106 is that $450,000 is in 
Capital Additions and that $1.8M is a carryover.  Barbara Buikema agreed that the bulk of 
the changes are carryover projects. 
 
Director Siegfried stated that the report is well written but questioned the legality and use 
of the term “revenue stream” and felt that the organization seeking them out is 
inappropriate.  Barbara Buikema stated that some sources of revenue are new to the 
organization such as from brine and cannabis growers.  Barbara said that the new income 
directly offsets operation costs.  Director D’Ambrosio requested a legal opinion regarding 
the legality of the term and District Counsel, Robert Rathie, Esq., advised that it is legal and 
also that there will be further legal review done.  
 

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Rachel	and	seconded	by	Director	Townsend,	

the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐24.	
	

24.	Resolution	No.	2019‐25; A Resolution Designating Classification Titles In          
The Carmel Area Wastewater District And Providing For The Number Of Positions And 
Monthly Salary Ranges-Effective July 1,2019–Report	by General	Manager,	Barbara	Buikema 

 
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	
Siegfried,	the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐25.	

 
25.	Resolution	No.	2019‐26; A Resolution Approving A Contribution of $1M to         
			The “Defend Or Managed Retreat Restricted Reserve” As Part Of The Budget Process 
   FY 2019-20 -Report	by General	Manager,	Barbara	Buikema	
	

The Budget Committee recommended an additional $1M to be allocated to this fund for the 
2019-20 fiscal year.   
 

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Rachel	and	seconded	by	Director	Townsend,	

the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐26.	
 
 
 

7

7



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

7 

 

26.	Resolution	No.	2019‐27; A Resolution Revising The Fee for Industrial Discharge          
Permits, As Adopted By Resolution No. 91-03, Commencing February 1, 1993.  
		Report	by Principal	Engineer,	Rachel	Lather	
	
Rachel Lather reported that the fees for Pretreatment Inspection have been $40 dollars over 
a 2-year period for 28 years and have not been increased.  Ms. Lather reviewed the current 
fees and costs for inspection, and after her analysis she recommends raising it to $150 per 
year. 
 
Director Siegfried would like to place on the Board of Director’s agenda, a discussion of the 
policy for repeat visits following inspections to restaurants and how to recoup costs.  The 
General Manager agrees that policy issues can be addressed apart from ordinance issues, 
and Ms. Lather is currently working on updating/changing the Ordinance.  
	

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Townsend	and	seconded	by	Director	
D’Ambrosio,	the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐27.	

	
27.	Resolution	No.	2019‐28; A Resolution Authorizing Inviting Bids for a         
Sewer Line Replacement Project- Hatton Canyon, Contingent Upon a Grant Award 
		Report	by Principal	Engineer,	Rachel	Lather	
	
Rachel Lather reported that the Hatton Canyon line has been troublesome since 1995.  In 
2017 CAWD applied for a FEMA grant to repair it.  FEMA agreed to fund the project but would 
like to know how soon CAWD would be able to complete it.  Ms. Lather recommends opening 
bidding for the project, dependent on the funding of the project.  Ms. Lather and Robert 
Rathie, District Counsel, have discussed “escrow bidding” action to accommodate and 
encourage bidding.   

 
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’	Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	
Rachel,	the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐28.	

 
28.	Resolution	No.	2019‐29; A Resolution Authorizing The General Manager To Execute         
A Professional Services Agreement In An amount Not To Exceed $79,390 For Electrical 
Engineering Programming Services For The Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement  
Project-Frisch Engineering-Report	by Maintenance	Superintendent,	Chris	Foley	
	
Chris Foley reported this is a request that the Board of Directors authorize the General 
Manager to contract with Frisch Engineering, to complete programming for the Pump 
Station PLC/SCADA Replacement Project.  Director Rachel questioned whether such  
programming would allow  CAWD staff to be able to maintain and troubleshoot the settings.  
Mr. Foley confirmed that this is part of what they are planning to put in place and will 
designate multiple individuals to be given this ability.  Director Rachel asked additionally, if 
a change is made in the program or settings, is it part of the history and Mr. Foley confirmed 

8

8



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

8 

 

that the program will track those changes at set points and logs will be  generated of all 
changes and settings. 
	

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	Director	Rachel,	

the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐29.	
	
29.	Resolution	No.	2019‐30; A Resolution Authorizing The General Manager To Execute         
A Professional Services Agreement In An Amount Not To Exceed $35,600 For Electrical 
Design Services For The Standby Power Reliability Project- Beecher Engineering  
		Report	by Plant	Engineer,	Patrick	Treanor	
 
Patrick Treanor reported that this resolution is part of the Project #18-08 Standby Power 
Reliability Project.  Mr. Treanor stated that asset management work was done in 2012 to 
diminish or eliminate the high probability/consequence of failure issues of the standby 
power now in place.  Currently CAWD standby generators are in a high-risk zone, and this 
purchase and installation will remove CAWD from that risk zone of failure.  This resolution 
will authorize the purchase of a trailer mounted, portable, 400 KW generator.  Director 
Rachel asked what the transfer response time is?  Mr. Treanor stated it is about 10 seconds, 
and the whole transfer process is very safe.  

	
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	Director	
Townsend,	the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐30.	

	

ACTION	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD 

Action  Items  consist  of  business which  requires  a  vote by  the  Board. These  items  are 
acted upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) 
Public Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

OTHER	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD	

30.	PG&E Energy Use History –	Presentation	by	Plant	Engineer,	Patrick	Treanor	 	
	 								

Informational	Only	–	No	Action	Required	
 

Director Rachel requested a follow up report of the PG&E usage in 6 months and Mr. Treanor 
agreed.  Director Rachel requested the dollar amount of the energy savings that is expected?  
Mr. Treanor estimated it to be ~ $2000.00 monthly.  
 
11.  Receive and Accept Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules –       
       May 2019  

Director Siegfried would like to allocate the purchase of software last month to Engineering 

9

9



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

9 

 

funds and not to Contingency funds since we are confirmed to be under budget.  Ms. Buikema 
agreed that it would be coded to Engineering.                     

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION	ITEMS	

31.	PBCSD	05‐31‐19	Regular	Board	Meeting	‐	Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,		 	 	 				
					General	Manager	

32.	Update on the Mr. Larsen Connection In Carmel Highlands-	Oral	Report	by	Collections	
Superintendent,	Daryl	Lauer	 	

No report at this time.   	 	

STAFF	&	BOARD	MEMBER		REPORTS	

Staff  Reports  include  items  for  which  verbal  reports/presentation will  be  provided.  If  a 
specific presentation is planned, it will be listed and summary information may be included 
with the  Agenda.    Brief oral  reports may be provided for  items arising after the Agenda 
preparation. The Board may wish to ask questions or discuss a staff report, but no action is 
appropriate other than referral to staff, or request that a matter be set as a future Agenda 
Item. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS       

34.	Announcements On Subjects Of Interest To The Board Made By Members  
							Of The Board or Staff -                

             
       Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning their 

activities and/or meetings or conferences attended. 
  

o Director Townsend stated that it has been 6 months since a special meeting for 
strategy was held and she would like to discuss any progress at the next board 
meeting. 
 

o Mr. Niccum  will have an annual Public Safety day July 20th, Saturday – He invited 
the CAWD Board to attend. 
 

o CAWD’s annual Employee BBQ – will be July 19th at Rio Vista Room 
 
PBCSD	Board	Public	Meeting	Notice	&	Agenda–The next PBCSD meetings are scheduled for: 
Friday, June 28, 2019 at 9:30a.m.  Director	Rachel	is	scheduled	to	attend.				 
Friday, July 26, 2019 at 9:30a.m.  Director	Siegfried	is	scheduled	to	attend.		 
 

10

10



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

10 

 

Reclamation	Management	Committee	Meeting – The next RMC meeting is scheduled for:  
Wednesday, November 6, 2019 at 9:30 a.m.  Director	Townsend	and	Director	White	are	scheduled	to	
attend.		
Special	Districts	Association	of	Monterey	County–The next SDA meeting is scheduled for: 
Tuesday, July 16, 2019 at 6:00 pm.  Director	Townsend	is	scheduled	to	attend. 
 

	
35.		CLOSED	SESSION:	As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the Board 
of Directors may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider specific matters dealing with litigation, 
certain personnel matters, real property negotiations, or to confer with the District’s Meyers‐
Milias‐Brown representative. 
 

 
A.	 Public	Employee	Performance	Evaluation	

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 the Board will meet in closed 
session to consider a Personnel Matter:  Legal	Counsel	Performance	Evaluation	
 

	

 
B.	 Public	Employee	Performance	Evaluation	

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 the Board will meet in closed session 
to consider a Personnel Matter:  General	Manager	Performance	Evaluation 

	

	
Board	Action	

The	Board	convened	in	closed	session	at	11:00	am	and	received	information	and	
provided	direction.		There	was	no	reportable	action	taken.		The	Board	closed	
session	at	11:17	am.	Legal	Counsel	announced	that	no	reportable	action	was	
taken.	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

11

11



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held June 27, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

11 

 

36.		ADJOURNMENT	

There	being	no	further	business	to	come	before	the	Board,	the	President	Pro	Tem	adjourned	
the	meeting	at	10:52	a.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, July 25, 
2019 or an alternate  acceptable date, in the Board Room of the District Office, 3945 Rio Road, 
Carmel, CA 93923. NOTE: Staff reports and materials regarding these agenda items are 
available for public review Monday through Wednesday of the week immediately prior to the 
Board Meeting at the District Office or at www.cawd.org. After staff reports have been 
distributed, if additional documents  are produced by the District and provided to a majority of 
the Board regarding any item on  the agenda, they will be available at the District Office 
during normal business hours.  Documents distributed at the meeting will be made available in 
the same manner. 

	
Respectfully	submitted:	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 __________________________________________________	

Domine	Barringer,	Secretary	to	the	Board	
APPROVED:	
________________________________________________	
Robert	Siegfried,	President	Pro	Tem	

	
	

12

12



 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)  
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES  

JULY 15, 2019 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL  The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.    
 
Present:  President: Ken White, Directors: Greg D’Ambrosio, Michael Rachel,  

Robert Siegfried and Charlotte Townsend 
 
Absent:  none  

 
 
Others:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 

 Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD District Legal Counsel 
 

Director Charlotte Townsend arrived at 9:24 a.m. 
 
1. OPENING SESSION  

 
A.  Appearances/Public Comments:  

There were no appearances or public comments. 
 

B.  Agenda Changes:  
There were no agenda changes.   

 
C.  Announcement of Closed Session  

No one addressed the Board before Closed Session.   The Board convened closed 
session at 9:00 a.m. 

 
2. CLOSED SESSION: As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the Board of 
Directors may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider specific matters dealing with litigation, certain 
personnel matters, real property negotiations, or to confer with the District’s Meyers-Milias-Brown 
representative. 

 
 
 
A. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 the Board will meet in closed 
session to consider a Personnel Matter:  Legal Counsel Performance Evaluation 
 

 

 
B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 the Board will meet in closed session 
to consider a Personnel Matter:  General Manager Performance Evaluation 

 

13

13



The Board came out of closed session at 11:05, and Legal Counsel announced that in the closed 
session the Board had taken up and discussed the two agendized items, the performance 
evaluations of the General Manager and the Legal Counsel.  The General Manager’s evaluation 
was continued over for further discussion at a later Board meeting.  The Board concluded the 
evaluation of the Legal Counsel.  No reportable action was taken.   
 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Board, the President 
adjourned the meeting at 11:06 a.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., 
Thursday, July 25, 2019 or an alternate, acceptable date, in the Board Room of the District 
Office, 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923. 

3.  
As Reported To: 

 

____________________________________________________ 

Kristina Pacheco, Secretary to the Board 

APPROVED: 

________________________________________________ 
Ken White, President 

14

14



15

15



16

16



17

17



18

18



19

19



20

20



21

21



22

22



23

23



24

24



25

25



26

26



27

27



28

28



29

29



30

30



31

31



32

32



33

33



34

34



35

35



36

36



37

37



38

38



39

39



40

40



41

41



42

42



43

43



44

44



45

45



46

46



47

47



48

48



 
  

 

STAFF REPORT     
 

TO:    Board of Directors 

 

FROM:  Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 

 

DATE:            July 25, 2019   
         
SUBJECT:  Monthly Report – June 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 

             

Permits Issued 

 

Sewer Lateral Permits issued in June      ….....................                                                        20 

 

Total Fees.......................................................................................................  $3,005.00 

 

 

Maintenance  

 

Attached is a map of the locations cleaned in past three months. There were no Closed 

Circuit Television (CCTV) sewer line inspections during the month of June.   

 

 

Cleaning period  Footage Cleaned  Percentage Cleaned  Size of Pipe Cleaned 

April  45,753 ft.  11.13%  6 – 10 inches 

May  48,124 ft.  11.70%  6 – 12 inches 

June  39,321 ft.  9.56%  6 – 12 inches 

 

 

 

 

49

49



 
  

Construction Activities 

 

Staff repaired the base and trough on three manholes in June. Confined space entry was 

made into the wet well at Calle La Cruz pump station to install a new transducer and 

relocate the float tree.  

 

 

General Comments 

 

The Collection System ran smoothly during the US Open. 

 

Robert Bowman participated as part of the Confined Space Rescue team two‐day 

training.  

 

 

Service Calls Responded to by Crew 

 

Date  Time  Callout  Resolution 

6/7/19  2:01 PM  Power Outage at Calle La Cruz 

& Ribera Pump Stations 

Staff monitored stations until power 

was restored. 

6/23/19  12:49 PM  Backup into Business  Called by plumber for a backup into 

a business. Staff cleaned District 

mainline and found no problem. 

Informed business owner and 

plumber that the problem was in the 

private lateral.  

 

6/24/19  9:39 AM  Lateral Spill  Called by homeowner for a lateral 

spill, owner advised to call their 

plumber. 

 

USA Location Requests – 121 

Plumbing permit inspections – 16 

Private Sewer Lateral Compliance Certificates Issued – 2   

         (See Example of Certificate) 

 

FUNDING 

N/A   

50

50



7/12/2019

51

51

lauer
Text Box
April (Green) -  45,753 feetMay (Yellow) -  48,124 feetJune (Red) -     39,321 feet              Monthly Cleaning Map



P
ri
v
a
te
S
e
w
e
r
L
a
te
ra
l

P
ro
g
ra
m

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

C
er

tif
ic

at
e

fo
r 

P
riv

at
e 

S
ew

er
La

te
ra

l

P
ar

ce
lA

dd
re

ss
:

P
a

rc
e

l N
um

be
r:

E
x
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
 D

a
te

: 

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

N
u
m

b
e
r:

Is
su

e
D

a
te

: 
Ty

p
e

: 

S
pe

c
ia

l
In

st
ru

ct
io

ns
:

R
e

ta
in

 th
is

 P
S

L
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

fo
r

yo
u
r 

re
co

rd
s

fo
r

a
ny

 f
u

tu
re

p
a

rc
e
l
sa

le
,r

e-
m

o
de

l 
g

re
at

e
r

th
a
n

$
50

,0
00

.

39
45

R
io

R
d.

00
0-

00
0-

00
0

7/
25

/2
9

12
34

7/
25

/1
9

La
te

ra
lC

om
pl

ia
nc

e

N
/A

EXAMPLE

52

52



STAFF REPORT 
 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 

 

Date:    July 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report (for June 2019) 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

 

Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 
 
DISCUSSION  

 

Safety & Training 

June 12‐ Tailgate training.  Chris Dixon, Senior Operator, gave a presentation on tips to 

avoid over exertion via safe lifting techniques and prevention of heat exhaustion 

especially as we enter the summer months.  

 

June 19‐ Tailgate training.  Mark Dias, Safety/Compliance Administrator (S/C Admin 

Dias), presented a “how to” video on safe tick removal and debunked persistent 

removal myths such as using fire/matches, oils, fingernail polish, etc.  The first aid 

boxes and the Collections crew will be supplied with tick removal tools. 

 

June 26‐ Tailgate training.  Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, gave a presentation 

on improving the use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) by integrating it with the 

digital Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) program.  SOPs have been developed for 

a wide range of Collections equipment (chainsaws, generators, VACCON, etc.).  Each 

SOP includes directions for PPE and safety.  The SOP program generates Quick 

Response (QR) label codes that are placed on the equipment. By scanning the QR code 

with a phone or tablet before the job, staff can download the SOP and ensure they bring 

the proper PPE to the job site.  

 

External/Professional Training 

June 5 and 6 – Supplemental Confined Space Rescue Training. Because of the plant’s 

location in the unincorporated area, fully equipped/trained external responders would 

53

53



need to come from Seaside/Salinas. It is expected to take up to an hour for those 

responders to assemble, arrive, assess and begin meaningful assistance. Therefore; 

CAWD previously established a designated confined space “rescue team.” Training 

throughout the year is needed to maintain this response capability. For two days in June 

the CAWD rescue team received hands on training from a noted expert in this field. 

Emphasis was on practical, hands on training; especially how to speed up a rescue 

under realistic scenarios, using the actual equipment on‐hand. Three rescue entries 

were completed, including an entry wearing Self Contained Breathing Apparatus 

(SCBA) gear. This approach was well received by the team and will be reinforced with 

the same trainer during the annual Safety Weeks training in September. 

 

Ongoing Safety Improvements 

During June Maintenance Superintendent Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to 

implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the 

Safety Committee. Many of the physical safety improvements are projects extending 

over weeks or months.  Activities in June included: 

 Respiratory Safety – gas levels at the Calle La Cruz lift station (Ribera Road). 

Background; As described in previous reports, this lift station receives wastewater 

from the Carmel Highlands. The longer travel‐time allows the anaerobic generation 

of dangerous hydrogen sulfide gas. Gas levels were high enough to warrant locking 

the hatch and preventing access until the gas could be mitigated.  Four options were 

identified and are being tried in order of increasing cost. The first two options 

proved ineffective. The third option, dosing liquid calcium nitrate, was started in 

December and showed significant improvement. The dosage rate was increased in 

January/February. The results showed some additional improvement but did not fall 

in proportion to the dosage increase. The dosage was again increased in May to 

three times the initial dosage. The gas levels decreased only marginally which 

shifted focus to reducing the remaining gas generated from Pt. Lobos State Parks. 

This is a second effluent stream pumped separately to Ribera Road. Update; 

Collections staff constructed and installed a second dosing system at Pt. Lobos 

which became operational mid‐July. Gas measurements will begin in late July. 

Monthly tracking continuing. 

 Bulk aqueous ammonia system repairs.  Background; as described in previous 

reports, CAWD receives bulk deliveries of 19% aqueous ammonia approximately 

once per month. The bulk tank is outdoors at the tertiary building with permanent 

secondary containment. New gas monitoring equipment showed that ammonia 

vapors are escaping out of the tank lid during the filling process.  Operations staff 

have consistently been required to wear respirators during deliveries. Until the 

system is improved, an Interim Operating Procedure (IOP) has been promulgated.  

Per the IOP staff are now required to remotely monitor the tank level at a safe 

distance using the wireless Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 

54

54



system rather than stand near the tank during filling. CAWD staff intends to retrofit 

the piping and venting rather than purchasing a replacement system. A pressure 

gauge was installed to determine the pressures generated during filling. The 

pressures were monitored during a delivery and showed that the tank lid essentially 

held zero pressure and ammonia levels were very high around the lid. A new, non‐

vented lid was installed in March. The pressure was monitored during a delivery 

and the system did not hold pressure. Using sulfur sticks staff confirmed both the 

lid and the pressure gauge are leaking. Update: An ammonia resistant sealant and a 

new gauge have been received and will be installed by late July. Once the system 

can be sealed, internal pressures will be documented during filling. The plant 

engineer will use this data to calculate specifications to retrofit the piping, 

connections and relief valves. Monthly tracking continuing. 

 New Item ‐ Slip prevention. It had been noted that during rain events and times of 

summer drizzle that the wooden deck between the trailers at the plant became very 

slippery. Because of this slip/fall hazard several rubber mats were used, however the 

rest of the deck remained slick. The deck was resurfaced using embedded grit and 

has worked very well on wet mornings. Item closed. 

 New Item ‐ Emergency Communications broadcasting.  It had been noted that the 

methods to notify all plant staff of an emergency were not ideal. Specifically, the 

plant siren/klaxon located on the Operations building is not audible in the Lab; and 

most Collections staff do not have two‐way radios on the same frequency as the 

plant staff. To improve emergency communications the new phone system was set 

up with a “broadcast” feature. This allows anybody near a phone to simply push a 

single button which immediately activates the speakers on all phones at the plant. 

S/C Admin Dias explained how the system works and confirmed the feature was 

operational at the lab and collections phones.  A drill will be coordinated in July so 

staff in each building can practice using the system.  Item closed. 

 

Tours and Outreach 

There were no tours given in June as the Monterey Peninsula College science class tour 

was rescheduled for early July.  

 

Injuries; first aid responses; worker compensation claims 

There were no worker’s comp injuries/claims in June.  There was one first aid incident 

where an employee sustained a cut to a fingertip while picking a sharp piece of metal. 

The cut was cleaned, bandaged and the employee returned to work without further 

complications. The updated matrix is below. 

 

 

 

 

55

55



  Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2019 Reporting Year  

TYPE 

New  

Incidents 

(Month) 

Total  

Incidents (Year)

Total Days Away 

from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 

Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 

lost  

(Year) 

OSHA 

Injuries 
0  0  0  0  0 

OSHA 

Illnesses 
0  0  0  0  0 

Other WC 

Claims 
0  0  0  0  0 

First Aid 

(non‐OSHA) 
1  5  0  0  0 

 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

56

56



% of Total MG

66.005 189.87

33.995 89.56

100.00 279.44

82.840 130.23

11.817 156.91

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1174.96 1568.27 N/A N/A

2344.93 2255.78 N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

1780.18 2260.45

 Reclamation Total                                      

217,044.04 45,975.29$  39,816.35$  

2019

24,451.51$                              

2164.89

54,879.43$                           

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.296

0.191

857.16

8.05 BG (24.69 B acre-ft.)

1.532

582.44

399.49

0.000

Apr'19

274.73

481.32

0.000

308.93 MG (948.12 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.157

0.923

May'19

0.612

27,347.31$  

0.192$            

51,819.36

32,193.52$  33,355.65$  

20,620.81$                           

18,248.09$  

0.209$            18,985.21$                           

18,627.98$  

COMMENTS

MF/RO

130.23MG (399.69acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-19)                 

21,568.26$  

7,660.09$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: June 

2019

31.196

0.148

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

0

Mar'19

2018

Accumulated Totals

27,027.09$                           

127,753.00

121,483.00

89,291.04

28,038.31$                           

Apr'19

8,501.44$     

1,689.48$                              

2,064.83$                              

714,294.00

3,754.31$                              

6,406.28$                              

10,409

Mar'19

0

2 QTR

9,247.47$                              

May'19June '19 KWh 

28,232.68$                           

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.805 0.920

2019 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

12.802

37.658

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

4.450

CAWD Total          

23,692.08$  

0.352

Jun'19

0.000

0.82824.856

Monthly Totals

1.255

0.427

0.124

1.040

Jun '19 kWh

0.177$            

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                      

173,302.36

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.199$            

CAWD Total

CAWD 1770.27

20,378.22$                           

9,165.27$     

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

24,190.38$  

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

57

57



Month

Jul 18

Aug 18

Sep 18

Oct 18

Nov 18

Dec 18

Jan 19

Feb 19

Mar 19

Apr 19

May 19

Jun 19

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

58

58



% of Total MG

64.344 152.22

35.656 89.56

100.00 241.78

75.422 99.04

19.618 152.46

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1174.96 N/A N/A N/A

2344.93 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) Micro Turbine system off-line the month of May due to equipment malfunction

CAWD 1770.27

20,620.81$                           

8,501.44$     

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

23,692.08$  

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.179$            

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                      

192,182.32

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.164$            

CAWD Total

May'19

0.000

0.82025.428

Monthly Totals

1.275

0.455

0.084

0.961

May '19 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

14.091

39.519

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

7.753

CAWD Total          

20,378.22$  

0.366

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.727 1.111

2019 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

0 (2)

Feb'19

0

2 QTR

2,064.83$                              

Apr'19May '19 KWh 

3,754.31$                              

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Mar'19

7,660.09$     

7,268.91$                              

9,880.24$                              

703,885.00

17,149.15$                           

6,014.36$                              

0

Feb'19

2018

Accumulated Totals

27,730.22$                           

102,744.00

144,776.00

93,201.48

27,027.09$                           

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: May 

2019

29.806

0.250

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

COMMENTS

MF/RO

99.04MG (303.95acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-19)                 

18,985.21$  

6,406.28$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

21,568.26$  

0.168$            

47,406.32

28,038.31$  32,193.52$  

21,715.86$                           

9,247.47$     

0.196$            1,689.48$                              

18,248.09$  

Mar'19

274.73

467.67

0.000

306.97 MG (942.08 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.093

0.209

Apr'19

0.651

1.373

1.647

741.65

8.01 BG (24.59 B acre-ft.)

1.762

466.92

303.79

0.000

48,640.56$                           

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

1780.18 2260.45

 Reclamation Total                                      

195,945.48 39,816.35$  28,232.68$  

2019

23,369.31$                              

2164.89

59

59



Month

Jun 18

Jul 18

Aug 18

Sep 18

Oct 18

Nov 18

Dec 18

Jan 19

Feb 19

Mar 19

Apr 19

May 19

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

60

60



% of Total MG

64.083 126.79

35.917 75.47

100.00 202.26

57.739 69.23

43.731 144.71

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1174.96 N/A N/A N/A

2344.93 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) Micro Turbine system off-line the month of April due to equipment malfunction

CAWD 1770.27

21,715.86$                             

7,660.09$     

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

20,378.22$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.153$             

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                      

194,527.92

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.141$             

CAWD Total

Apr'19

0.000

1.30825.143

Monthly Totals

1.308

0.470

0.122

0.755

Apr '19 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

14.092

39.235

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

17.158

CAWD Total          

20,620.81$   

0.408

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report (Amended)

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

1.166 1.457

2019 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

0 (2)

Jan'19

0

2 QTR

9,880.24$                                

Mar'19Apr '19 KWh 

17,149.15$                             

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Feb'19

6,406.28$     

20,346.02$                             

12,687.06$                             

703,885.00

33,033.08$                             

6,251.31$                                

0

Jan'19

2018

Accumulated Totals

25,414.30$                             

110,877.00

144,516.00

54,990.20

27,730.22$                             

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: April 

2019

22.654

0.572

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

COMMENTS

MF/RO

69.23MG (212.47acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-19)                 

1,689.48$     

6,014.36$                                

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

18,985.21$   

0.144$             

50,011.92

27,027.09$   28,038.31$   

19,162.99$                             

2,064.83$     

0.168$             7,268.91$                                

9,247.47$     

Feb'19

231.50

443.89

0.000

309.19 MG (948.90 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.166

0.000

Mar'19

0.568

1.174

1.667

620.42

7.98 BG (24.50 B acre-ft.)

1.457

388.92

212.37

0.000

35,785.34$                             

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

1780.18 2260.45

 Reclamation Total                                      

165,867.20 28,232.68$   3,754.31$     

2019

20,485.65$                                

2164.89

61

61



0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

62

62



STAFF REPORT  
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Ray De Ocampo 

Laboratory/Environmental Compliance 

Supervisor 

 

Date:    July 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report – June 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive Report‐Informational only; No action required 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

LABORATORY REPORT 

 On June 5 & 6, 2019, Mr. Holland participated in the CAWD Confined Space 

Rescue Training at the Treatment Plant. 

 On June 13, 2019, laboratory staff noticed that blue color water was coming into 

the Headworks of the Treatment Plant; this was anticipated as it was coming 

from the chemical waste trucks dumping chemical toilet waste into the collection 

sewer system from the US Open Golf Tournament at Pebble Beach. 

 On June 17, 2019, the annual laboratory UPS Battery back‐up system was 

serviced by Eaton.  The Eaton Technician advised that the battery life is on its 

fifth year of service and should be replaced, the batteries are scheduled to be 

replaced on the 2019‐2020 budget. 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 CAWD Environmental Compliance Staff completed the second set of   

Stormwater Inspections for the City of Carmel for 2018‐2019 contract.  Mr. De 

Ocampo notified City of Carmel Environmental Compliance Manager Agnes 

Martelet of the completion and the billing invoice will be sent out. 

 

 

 

63

63



Restaurant Inspection Table 

 

 

Restaurant 

 

 

Compliant 

Reason for 

Non‐

Compliance 

 

 

Comments 

Sushi Heaven  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

L’escargot  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Akaoni  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Tommy Wok  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

The Forge in the Forest  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Hog’s Breath Inn  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Casanova’s  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Mulligan’s Public House  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Seventh & Dolores  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Yeast of Eden  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Carmel Valley Coffee 

Roasting 

    Stormwater Inspection* 

* denotes that City of Carmel Environmental Compliance Manager is reviewing 

inspection notes to see if follow up is needed. 

 

 

Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspection Table 

 

Grocery 

Store/Delicatessen 

 

 

Compliant 

Reason for 

Non‐

Compliance 

 

 

Comments 

None       

 

 

 

 

 

64

64



Restaurant Compliance Table 

% Compliance  Maintenance  Mechanical 

April 2019  100%  100% 

May2019  99%  99% 

June 2019  100%  100% 

 

 

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐Informational item only 

65

65



Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost

Projects Implementation Plan Schedule Mon 4/2/18 Tue 6/30/26 $21,903,000.00

Treatment Plant Projects Mon 4/2/18 Tue 6/30/26 $13,674,000.00

18-01 Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge Holding 
Tank Replacement Project

Treanor Mon 4/30/18 Thu 11/4/21 $8,875,000.00

18-02 Ops Building Historian and Reporting Foley Mon 4/2/18 Tue 12/31/19 $140,000.00

18-03 CMMS Improvements (Ops Rounds) Foley Wed 7/11/18 Mon 9/30/19 $100,000.00

18-10 Aeration Basin Improvements 18/19 
(PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Waggoner Wed 6/27/18 Fri 6/21/19 $100,000.00

18-09 Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab Waggoner Thu 7/5/18 Fri 8/30/19 $250,000.00

18-05 PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Foley Mon 10/8/18 Tue 7/13/21 $300,000.00

18-08 Standby Power Reliability Project Treanor Mon 10/8/18 Fri 10/23/20 $730,000.00

18-07 Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and 
Cleaning

Treanor/Young Fri 3/15/19 Fri 3/6/20 $125,000.00

18-11 Microturbine Integration Project Treanor/Foley Tue 6/4/19 Tue 6/30/20 $510,000.00

19-01 Critical Process Onsite Flood Mitigations 
(PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Mon 6/29/20 $100,000.00

Aeration Basin Improvements 19/20 Waggoner Mon 7/1/19 Thu 4/30/20 $140,000.00

19-10 1 Water Corrosion Control Waggoner Mon 7/1/19 Fri 6/12/20 $30,000.00

Cathodic Protection Testing Treanor Wed 7/3/19 Tue 6/30/20 $30,000.00

18-28 Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 6/30/26 $120,000.00

Plant Fence Replacement Treanor Mon 12/2/19 Tue 7/20/21 $150,000.00

Effluent Building Wet Well Mixing Waggoner Mon 2/3/20 Tue 6/30/20 $60,000.00

Cart Charging and Parking Foley Mon 2/3/20 Fri 8/13/21 $50,000.00

Operations Bldg Basement Renovation Waggoner Mon 2/3/20 Tue 6/30/20 $50,000.00

Plant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 3/29/22 $0.00

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs Treanor Fri 1/1/21 Mon 3/29/21 $44,000.00

Lagoon Crossing Rehabilitation Treanor Tue 2/1/22 Wed 6/1/22 $300,000.00

RAS Pump/Piping Rehab Treanor Tue 2/1/22 Wed 6/1/22 $0.00

Lunch Room MCC Replace with 
Panelboard

Foley Wed 6/1/22 Thu 11/3/22 $140,000.00

Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Manuals Treanor Tue 4/3/18 Wed 7/24/24 $1,330,000.00

18-14 Sea Level Rise Study Treanor Tue 4/3/18 Tue 12/4/18 $220,000.00

19-14 BioWin Modeling Treanor Fri 6/28/19 Wed 3/4/20 $50,000.00

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan Treanor Fri 11/1/19 Tue 9/1/20 $35,000.00

Life Expectancy Analysis Treanor Wed 9/2/20 Fri 7/2/21 $35,000.00

Online O&M Manual Treanor Wed 9/1/21 Wed 7/24/24 $150,000.00

Reclamation Projects Wed 5/9/18 Tue 6/1/21 $840,000.00

18-24 Reclamation Sand Filter Integration 
Project

Waggoner Wed 5/9/18 Sun 6/30/19 $100,000.00

Treatment Plant Projects

Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project

Ops Building Historian and Reporting

CMMS Improvements (Ops Rounds)

ation Basin Improvements 18/19 (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab

PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Standby Power Reliability Project

Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and Cleaning

Microturbine Integration Project

Critical Process Onsite Flood Mitigations (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Aeration Basin Improvements 19/20

1 Water Corrosion Control

Cathodic Protection Testing

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Plant Fence Replacement

Effluent Building Wet Well Mixing

Cart Charging and Parking

Operations Bldg Basement Renovation

Plant Paving, Vault Lids, DrainagePlant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs

Lagoon C

RAS PRAS P

Lunc

Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Manu

Sea Level Rise Study

BioWin Modeling

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan

Life Expectancy Analysis

Reclamation Projects

Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2018 2019 2020 2021

66

66



Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost

18-26 RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and 
Containment

Treanor Fri 6/8/18 Wed 5/13/20 $415,000.00

18-25 EQ Basin Pump Electrical/Mechanical Foley Mon 10/8/18 Mon 9/30/19 $80,000.00

19-12 MF/RO Sound Barriers Treanor Tue 10/1/19 Mon 3/2/20 $35,000.00

19-15 MF Feed Pipe Replacement Treanor Wed 1/29/20 Tue 6/30/20 $35,000.00

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection 
Testing

Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $25,000.00

Painting Project Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $75,000.00

Reclamation Studies Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 6/1/21 $75,000.00

MF/RO Performance Review Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 3/31/20 $40,000.00

Reclamation 15-Year Asset Management 
Assessment

Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 6/1/21 $35,000.00

Collections Projects Mon 4/16/18 Tue 6/11/24 $8,229,000.00

19-02 Pretreatment Ordinance Lather Fri 11/15/19 Fri 3/13/20 $0.00

18-16 Highlands H2S Control Lauer Mon 4/16/18 Fri 6/28/19 $0.00

18-17 Hatton Canyon Pipe Bursting and Road 
Maintenance

Lather Wed 5/23/18 Wed 10/20/21 $1,450,000.00

18-18 Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement Foley/Lather Wed 7/18/18 Thu 2/13/20 $600,000.00

19-03 Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer 
Improvements

Lather Fri 3/15/19 Wed 2/10/21 $1,294,000.00

19-11 Monte Verde at 2nd Ave Sewer 
Replacement

Lather Thu 5/30/19 Thu 11/7/19 $150,000.00

19-07 Rio Road CIPP Lining Project Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 8/28/20 $1,340,000.00

18-27 Highlands FM ARVs Lauer Thu 8/1/19 Thu 11/14/19 $60,000.00

Highlands FM Flushing Lauer Tue 10/1/19 Mon 1/13/20 $75,000.00

18-29 September Ranch Water and Sewer Lather Fri 3/1/19 Fri 7/30/21 $0.00

19-13 Upper Rancho Canada Upsize Line Lather Wed 11/6/19 Tue 6/11/24 $1,500,000.00

Rancho Canada New Development Line Lather Wed 11/6/19 Tue 6/11/24 $1,500,000.00

Assessment Districts/Annexations Lather Tue 7/3/18 Wed 9/30/20 $55,000.00

19-09 2019 Mass Annexation Lather Fri 3/15/19 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00

18-21 Corona Road Assessment District Lather Thu 8/2/18 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00

19-05 Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection Lather Thu 8/2/18 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00

19-08 Carmel Valley Manor Sewer Lather Tue 7/3/18 Wed 9/30/20 $0.00

19-04 Yankee Point and Otter Cove Highlands Extension Lather Mon 5/6/19 Thu 1/9/20 $55,000.00

Collections Studies / Reports Lauer/Lather Thu 5/24/18 Fri 11/1/19 $205,000.00

18-22 Capacity Study/Asset Management Plan Lauer/Lather Thu 5/24/18 Mon 11/26/18 $100,000.00

18-23 New Connections Master Plan Lauer/Lather Thu 8/30/18 Sun 6/30/19 $0.00

Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment Lauer/Lather Fri 2/1/19 Wed 7/17/19 $75,000.00

19-06 Collection System SSMP Lauer/Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 11/1/19 $30,000.00

RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containment

EQ Basin Pump Electrical/Mechanical

MF/RO Sound Barriers

MF Feed Pipe Replacement

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection Testing

Painting Project

Reclamation Studies

MF/RO Performance Review

Reclamation 15-Year Asset Management Assessment

Collections Projects

Pretreatment Ordinance

Highlands H2S Control

Hatton Canyon Pipe Bursting and Road MaintenanceHatton Canyon Pipe Bursting and Road Maintenance

Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement

Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer Improvements

Monte Verde at 2nd Ave Sewer Replacement

Rio Road CIPP Lining Project

Highlands FM ARVs

Highlands FM Flushing

September Ranch Water and Sewer

Upper Rancho

Rancho Canada

Assessment Districts/Annexations

2019 Mass Annexation

Corona Road Assessment District

Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection

Carmel Valley Manor Sewer

Yankee Point and Otter Cove Highlands Extension

Collections Studies / Reports

apacity Study/Asset Management Plan

New Connections Master Plan

Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment

Collection System SSMP

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2018 2019 2020 2021

67

67



 
 1 

 

 
 
Staff Report       
 

 

TO:    Board of Directors 

 

FROM:  Ed Waggoner                                               

Operations Superintendent 

 

SUBJECT:  Monthly Report – June 2019 

 

DATE:            July 25, 2019                   

    

                        

RECOMMENDATION  

 

Receive Report‐Informational only; no action required 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

Plant Operation 

Treatment Plant: 

 

•    The treatment plant weathered the US Open, June 11th thru June 16th well 

considering that during this time period CAWD accepted the chemical toilet 

waste from the event. This waste had a high concentration of ammonia which 

placed a high oxygen demand on the activated sludge system. Plant staff 

made process control adjustment for the higher loadings, those adjustments 

were to the aeration system to prevent the facility from violating the National 

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System or the Water Reclamation 

Requirements. 

 

•    Project # 18‐09 Operations and Maintenance staff assisted Rebuild‐it Services 

Group, LLC in the installation of the Secondary Clarifier #1 gear drive 

 

 

68

68



 
 2 

mechanism and bridge replacement work that started on May 27th. Punch list 

work will be performed once ERS finishes media blasting and coating of the 

launders, weirs, and sludge collection system which started on July 8th. 

 

•    Project #18‐10 Operations and maintenance staff assisted Mathews Mechanical 

in installing the Environetics Director II Tank Baffle System in Aeration Basins 

#5 and # 6 during the week of June 17th, 2019. CAWD staff replaced 6 influent 

slide gates, three gates in each Aeration Basin during the same time period. 

PHI, Inc was on‐site also during the week of June 17th evaluating their wedge 

mixing system and adjusting the equipment while working with CAWD staff 

on the aeration basin mixing pilot project. 

 

Reclamation: 

 

•  CAWD  Staff  continues  working  with  H2O  Innovations  on  the  remote 

communication  and monitoring  of  the Micro  Filtration  and Reverse Osmosis 

systems  to  the  following parties; Trussell Technologies, Scinor Water America, 

Evoqua Water Technologies and Carmel Area Wastewater District. CAWD staff is 

still waiting for the final connection and project equipment connections as of June 

30th. 

  

• CAWD staff performed a Clean‐in‐Place (CIP) on Micro Filtration (MF) cell number 

3 which houses the Scinor membranes.  

 

• Project # 18‐24 Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project is currently waiting for 

new air supply  lines  to sand  lifting mechanisms  to arrive on‐site. Once on‐site 

CAWD staff will install during the week of July 22nd and begin operations of sand 

filtration equipment including backwashing pumps and clarifier. 

 

Training: 

 

•   Plant in‐house training continues with weekly Safety meetings.  

 

•   Operations Superintendent continues Operations training on Tuesday afternoon 
on Operational Processes which is mandatory for Operations Staff and is 

available to Laboratory, Maintenance, Collection and any other CAWD 

employees.  

 

Capital Improvement Phase 2 

69

69



 
 3 

 

•   Staff continues to communicate with Patrick Treanor (CAWD) on the 

Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 

Project for the following areas; Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower 

Building, Chlor/Dechlor Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 1, Digester 

No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering Building.  

 

Meetings Attended 

 

 Staff attended a 95% design review for the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation 

and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project at the treatment facility on June 

10th. 

  

 Monterey County Water Awareness Committee meeting June 13th, 2019 at 

Marina Coast Water District offices in Marina.  

 

 Monterey Water Works Association Board meeting June 13th in Moss Landing. 

 

 Telephone conference call on June 28th on Micro Filtration/Reverse Osmosis 

Operational Support from Trussell Technologies. 

 

Discharge Permit Violations 

 

•   No Reclamation Permit 93‐72 discharge violations for the month of June 2019. 

 

•    No Violations on the NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 

System) NPDES Number CA0047996, Order No. R3‐2014‐0012 for the month 

of June 2019. 

   

 

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐Informational item only 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Edward Waggoner        

70

70



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    July 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Maintenance Report – June 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress 

 

 The belt press local control panel has an obsolete PLC (Programmable Logic 

Controller) that requires replacement so that the functionality can be upgraded, 

and a new program can be implemented. Bryan Mailey Electric is rewiring the 

control panel based on the new design by Informative Controls.  

 

 The slide gates in aeration basins 5 and 6 are being replaced with new units.  

 

 The flow meter for the Reverse Osmosis reject water failed and was replaced. 

The specification for the new meter were challenging due to the low flow 

requirements and material compatibility. Staff worked with various vendors and 

a solution from Siemens was selected.  

 

Upcoming Maintenance Projects 

 

 All of the components have arrived for the 65kW microturbine exhaust and is 

scheduled for install in July. The Monterey Bay Air Resources District is issuing 

an updated permit to operate that includes one 30kW and one 65kW unit.   

 

 ERS Industrial is scheduled to begin abrasive blasting and coating of secondary 

clarifier #1 on July 7th. A preconstruction site walk was held between ERS and 

CAWD staff to review safety plan and site containment plan.  

71

71



 Research has been completed and hardware has been ordered for the lift station 

site to site communication upgrade. The new units will use an ultra‐secure 

Virtual Private Network to send data and alarms from the lift stations to the 

treatment plant.  

 

Staff Development 

 An equipment demonstration on ultrasonic flowmeters was provided by Flexim 

Instruments. This started an interesting discussion on flowmeter applications, 

accuracy and types. Staff is now more knowledgeable in flow meter applications.  

 

Work Order Metrics 

Preventive Maintenance      

       
Total Work Orders Generated      186

Total Work Orders Closed/Done      158

Total Work Orders Still Open      28

Percentage of Work Orders Completed      84.95%

       
Corrective Maintenance      
 

         

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

  Emergency  1       

  Critical   5       

  Urgent  10       

  Routine  5       
FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

72

72



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:               July 25, 2019 
 

Subject:          General Engineering 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

 

This report is provided to update the Board on current engineering activities. 

 

General Engineering 

 

The Principal Engineer continues to work on projects related to the 2019 Annexation, 

including Carmel Manor and Corona Road.  An informational letter regarding the 

proposed annexation and assessment district formation was sent to residents in the area 

of Corona Road on June 24, 2019. 
 
 
 

SRT Consultants (SRT) has completed the research portion (Task 1) of the due 

diligence engineering study of September Ranch water system and have completed 

much of the remaining tasks.  Clear Peak is waiting until we have determined if there 

are any “red flags” or other things that would preclude CAWD from going forward 

before signing an agreement or providing funding for the rate consultant, Raftelis.  We 

anticipate that CAWD will have sufficient information to make a decision regarding 

the water system by December 2019.   

 

Dan Keig has not signed the agreement or provided funding for the Yankee Point 

Project design contract with MNS.  Mr. Keig’s attorney has indicated that he is working 

on a new amended version of the agreement.  The Principal Engineer continues to 

work with the General Manager to resolve this issue with Mr. Keig. 

 

 

 

73

73



Collections 

 

On July 16, 2019 the mandatory pre‐bid meeting was conducted for replacement of the 

Hatton Canyon pipeline.  Addendum No. 1 was issued on July 3, 2019 that provided 

for escrow of bid documents.    Seven contractors and the representative for TT 

Technologies (manufacturer of the pipe bursting equipment) attended the pre‐bid 

meeting on July 16, 2019.  Bids will be opened on July 23, 2019 and FEMA has a 

deadline of July 24, 2019 to provide funding for construction this year.  The bids for 

this project will be brought to your Board at the July 25th meeting.  If FEMA cannot 

give us approval in time for this year’s construction window, we will either re‐bid or 

delay award of the contract until next year. 

  

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

 

74

74



 
  

 

Memorandum     
 

TO:    Board of Directors 

 

FROM:  Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 

 

DATE:            July 25, 2019   
         
SUBJECT:  Vac‐Con Combination Truck Purchase 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the General Manager to 
enter into a contract with Atlantic Machinery, Incorporated for the purchase of a new Vac-Con 
Combination Sewer and Storm Drain cleaning truck in the amount of $408,907. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Purchase of a new combination sewer cleaning truck was approved by the Board in the 
2019/2020 budget.  In anticipation of purchasing a new truck, Collections staff has been 
researching and testing trucks from multiple vendors.  After completing this research, the 
Collections Superintendent has determined that the Vac-Con Model V350/850 Combination 
truck meets the District’s needs.  The truck can be purchased from Atlantic Machinery, Inc. 
 
Because both the District and Atlantic Machinery, Inc. are members of the Sourcewell 
government-purchasing cooperative that enables public agencies to exercise joint purchasing 
powers, our District can get discount pricing on many items and services. Being part of the 
Sourcewell cooperative replaces the need for the District to get multiple bids. Sourcewell has 
already vetted a competitive bidding process in substantial compliance with the District’s 
Purchasing Policy for its members and Atlantic Machinery, Inc. was the lowest bidder through 
that process for the Vac-Con trucks. The total bid amount for the truck, including license and 
taxes, is $408,906.94. 
 
FUNDING 
 

The 2019‐20 Collections Capital Equipment Budget includes $410,000 for the purchase 

of a vacuum truck.   

 

75

75



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐31 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 

A CONTRACT WITH ATLANTIC MACHINERY, INCORPORATED FOR THE 

PURCHASE OF A VAC‐CON COMBINATION SEWER AND STORM DRAIN 

CLEANING TRUCK IN THE AMOUNT OF $408,907   

 

‐oOo‐ 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors authorized the FY2019‐2020 capital budget 

expenditure of $408,906.94 for the replacement of the Collections Department sewer 

cleaning combo vehicle; and  

WHEREAS, Atlantic Machinery, Inc a member of Sourcewell government 

purchasing cooperative has been awarded lowest bid through the joint purchasing 

powers competitive bidding process; and  

WHEREAS, Carmel Area Wastewater District is a member agency of the 

Sourcewell Government Purchasing Cooperative. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District, that accepts and awards the contract to Atlantic Machinery, 

Inc. in the amount of $408,906.94 and authorizes the General Manager to execute a 

contract with Atlantic Machinery, Inc. for the equipment procurement.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on July 25, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

 

               

76

76



      _____________________________ 

            President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

 

77

77



 
STAFF REPORT       
                 

 

   
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 

 

Subject:    #18‐28 ‐ Landscape Design Contract for Planning work Regarding WWTP 

Perimeter Trees and Interior Landscaping – Hall Landscape Design  

 

Date:    July 25, 2019 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It  is  recommended  that  the  Board  of  Directors  adopt  a  resolution  authorizing  the 

General  Manger  to  execute  a  contract  with  Hall  Landscape  Design  for  $27,375  to 

develop  a  plan  for  potential  removal  of  the  existing  eucalyptus  trees  around  the 

wastewater  treatment plant  (WWTP) and  replacement with native  trees  that also will 

adequately screen the WWTP from public view. The planning work would also include 

landscaping design of areas inside the fence where people gather. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

This contract work would be the jumping off point for Project #18‐28. The project would 

span the course of many years if the new tree plan proves to be feasible. The planning 

work included in this resolution aims to develop preliminary plans and strategies for 

potentially removing the eucalyptus trees that surround the WWTP and replacing them 

with native species. The eucalyptus trees provide an excellent visual screen of the 

WWTP from the surrounding area, however they do require ongoing maintenance 

including trimming the top of the trees to limit the height and mitigate trees falling in 

high winds. The trees were planted about 40 years ago and with proper care could 

potentially last another 100 years more. 

 

 

78

78



The thinking around this work is to investigate the extent of work required for CAWD 

to further align the treatment plant with goals of our neighbors (i.e. the State Parks and 

City of Carmel). The State Parks is supportive of removing the eucalyptus trees because 

they are non‐native and considered invasive. Staff believes that we should try to be 

good neighbors and members of the community and investigate the possibility of 

replacing the eucalyptus. 

 

The eucalyptus would not be cut down until native trees grow up to provide an 

adequate screen. Therefore, the planting of new trees would occur outside the existing 

eucalyptus so they can grow up for 10+ years before the eucalyptus are removed. The 

ability of native trees to screen the WWTP adequately will be investigated in this 

planning work as well as how the sequence of planting and cutting would be done. It is 

unknown at this time if native trees will provide an equivalent or a suitable screen for 

surrounding homes; and this will be one question we will attempt to answer in the 

planning work.   

 

In addition, the work scope includes design of re‐landscaping and planting of common 

areas inside the fence of the WWTP where people gather and around the entrance to the 

facility. The goal of the interior facility landscaping is to improve the look of the 

treatment plant and make it an even more attractive place.  

 

Three landscape contractors with design abilities were contacted regarding this work. 

Two contractors came onsite for a tour, and we received only one proposal. 

 

FUNDING 

     

The funding for this contract will come from existing capital reserves.  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

     

1. Hall Landscape Design proposal dated 13 December 2018 

 

79

79



December 13, 2018 
 
 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Attn. Barbara Buikema, General Manager  
P.O. Box 221428  
3945 Rio Rd. 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93922 
 
Re. Landscape perimeter screen renovation plus the interior facilities landscape design 
 
Dear Barbara, 
 
The following Landscape Design  is based upon meeting review with you and your crew a 
couple of weeks past.   
 
The project appears as two main design projects.  The perimeter Eucalyptus strategic tree 
removal is a stand-alone restoration habitat project.  While the interior facility grounds are 
made up of many nooks and interesting exposures and zones to plant, I have treated them 
as one project. All the interior planted spaces should relate as a contiguous design whole.    
 
The exterior will be an ongoing phasing project with the most moving parts of the two 
designs.  And while logical and followed practices can be drawn upon in the history of 
large-scale Eucalyptus removal in California, this one is unique in the direction to 
accommodate neighboring views into the facility while screening with new plants that will 
take time to grow.  Not only would we present the project as a good neighbor in the 
procedures to preserve the view into the CAWD facility and keep that peace;  but the very 
real compliance with State Parks and Environmental habitat protocols will be required it 
will remain important to balance. 
 
 
While this all can be defined with the best plant choices for replacement into the habitat 
the timing and understanding our success over time makes will be an outdoor class room.   
Basically, for me this is prescribing and working through requirements with your agency as 
the lead in writing the CEQA California Environmental Quality Act as it most likely will be 
required. My office will support the document with plans and detailing, much to be defined 
as the project progresses. 
 
At this point I am unsure of the time to allot for meetings and have set total hours for 
various possibilities.  The design and production time are much easier to figure.  I have 
given a general scope of design services, allotted time for meetings and estimated the 
number of hours it will take based upon the office fee schedule.  This amount is a target 
budget number and may or may not be reached. Time during construction for site review 
will be hourly as this extent and phasing is unknow at the outset. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

80

80



December 13, 2018 
 
 
Carmel Area Wastewater District                                       Landscape Design Proposal 
Attn. Barbara Buikema, General Manager  
 
 
 
In the Agreement the Perimeter surrounding the CAWD facilities fence is dealt with as to 
three locations:  (1.) Entry & South side of the facilities (2.) West side wrapping around 
opposite Rio Park and Mission Fields and (3.) The Monterey Diocese fence line  
back to the main entry. 
 
The interior landscape design shall be divided into logical graphic sheet depictions such as 
the actual working zones and the main campus adjacent to offices, lunch room and 
changing area.  The Entry inside of the fence will also extend a more filled out planting 
arrival from the road. 
 
To better understand the extent of each of the zones outside the compound and inside for 
design the scale and sheet inclusion will be easy to pick out.  An introduction key will index 
all the areas.  Essentially a larger scale makes the install easier in the field. Additionally, 
figured are some sketches along with the plan views.   
Presentation drawings have been also figured which will draw from photorealistic drawing 
over the photo for Public meeting consumption. 
 
Construction Plans shall also include an irrigation plan, projected water use calculations to 
satisfy MPWD and State Auditors which probably be required.  Of course, Plants species, 
location and specifications for installation all figure in the mx. 
 
I look forward to working with you. 
Best regards, 
Scott 
 
 
 
 
Scott Hall, landscape architect 
Hall Landscape Design 
 

 
 
CC: Patrick Treanor, P.E. Plant Engineer 
 
 
 
 
 

81

81



 
Work Order Agreement                                                         page 1 of 2  
December 13, 2018 
 
 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Attn. Barbara Buikema, General Manager  
P.O. Box 221428  
3945 Rio Rd. 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93922 
 
Project: Perimeter Eucalyptus replacement and Interior Facilities Landscaping. 
Project Scope:  Landscape Plans / planting, irrigation and details 
 
1. Meetings with Carmel Area Waste Water District (CAWD) Manger and review Staff 
2. Perimeter solutions for installation strategies for replacing the Eucalyptus hedge 
3. Perimeter plan showing plant replacement locations, size, quantities 
4. Interior Facilities Planting zones throughout the campus and emphasis on the main 
      Entry and People gathering spaces. 
5. Irrigation layout plans which include projected water use formulas compliment to  
 MPWD and State of California notation.  
 
I. Design Mobilization 

A. Project Mobilization tasks 
a. Receive current scaled digital drawing survey of the CAWD Plant and property 

Meets and boundaries of the property from the Plant Engineer.  
b. Any perimeter plan information per grades and etc.  
c.    A delineated piping diagram overlay of any utilities as electrical and water & sewer 

lines and etc. which pertain to the areas under discussion to be planted 
 

B.  Landscape Scope: Prescribed Eucalyptus Grove Removal 
a. Removal of all Eucalyptus globulus around the CAWD Plant Facilities property 

boundary.  Presentation Sheets shall include graphic demonstration areas: 
1. Entry and along the Southwest property boundary line 
2. North East boundary facing City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Rio Park & Mission 

Fields housing development 
3. East side along the Monterey Diocese fence line back to the Main Facilities 

Entry point.   
4. Planting with in the CAWD Facilities Plant showing plant species location, 

quantities and sizes 
5. Preliminary drawings first reviewed followed by Construction Documents 

 
b. Irrigation:  map and verify all zones new and possibly using some undamaged 

existing piping from the source point of landscape irrigation connection.  A line plan 
diagram locating dispersal points (valves) and connecting he system back to control 
clock. 

1. Create and review Projected  Water Use Allocation for the site for review by 
water agencies, MPWMD and etc.   
 

c.   Presentation:  Plan, Sketch and Photo realistic rendering for the  
Public elevation from the southwest and the Entry Gate area 

82

82



  
 
Work Order Agreement                                                         page 2 of 2  
December 13, 2018 
 
 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
3945 Rio Rd. 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93922 
 

 
II. Meetings 

 
A. Allotted time with the General Manager & Staff on site & e-mail notes 8-12 hours  
B. Meetings with City of Carmel-by-the- Sea Forestry Dept. and Planning & 

Building Dept………………4-6 hours 
C. Meetings with State Parks, Fish & Game and Coast Biologists  

(all if necessary) ………..allotted 4 - 6 hours 
D. Additional meeting time beyond the agreement would be billed at the Office Fee 

Schedule, Principal $95 hourly 
 

III. Reimbursement & Schedule of Fees 
A. Reproductions to be billed separately from the agreement 

1. Plots for review, presentation and etc. beyond the Preliminary meeting 
2. Engineering 
3. Biologists and other consultants required in the design. 

 
B. Office Fee Schedule 

• Principal Design + Meetings ………   $95hourly 
• Principal Production………………….. $80 hourly 
• Staff / Design………………………….  $65 hourly 
 

IV. If the above scope of design services is acceptable as defined in items I, II, & III 
Please sign here or attach this document as an Exhibit to generate agreement the 
CAWD standard contract. 

  
The purpose of this agreement is to act as a point from which to bill against the for  
an estimate for Design services for the Carmel Area Waste Water District  as defined 
above. (This proposal is valid for 60 days hence)  

1. Mobilization & Landscape Renovation Perimeter Eucalyptus and  
Interior Facilities Campus landscape Plans along with ……………. $22,930 

2. Drawing rendering, Sketches & photo overlay ………….…………   $  2,450 
3. Meeting time estimate ………………….... …………………………… $  1,995 

 
   Total aggregate cost ………………………………………………………   $27,375 
                       (Twenty-Seven Thousand Three Hundred and seventy-Five Dollars) 
Signed by:           
                 
              ________________________________________________________ 
                  Barbara Buikema, General Manager CAWD                       date:  

83

83



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐32 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A MINOR 

SERVICES CONTRACT WITH HALL LANDSCAPE DESIGN IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $27,375 FOR WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT (WWTP) PERIMETER TREES 

AND INTERIOR LANDSCAPE PLANNING 

 
-oOo- 

 
  WHEREAS, Staff has received a scope of work and fee proposal agreeable to the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District General Manager for planning work regarding perimeter trees and 

interior landscaping; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into a minor 

services contract for WWTP perimeter trees and interior landscape planning in an amount of 

$27,375, with Hall Landscape Design. 

  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on July 25, 2019, by the following vote: 

  AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

  NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

  ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

               _____________________________ 

                President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 

  Secretary of the Board 

84

84



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    July 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  2019‐20 Maintenance Contract with Bryan Mailey Electric 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the General 

Manager to enter into a contract with Mailey Electric in an amount not to exceed $220,000 

for fiscal year 2019‐20 for electrical maintenance work.   

 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The District has continued to rehabilitate the treatment plant electrical and control 

systems and been able to complete in‐house electrical maintenance tasks that improve 

the plant. There is an ongoing need for electrical expertise and skillset that is not 

available internally.  

 

The District can retain Bryan Mailey Electric to perform electrical maintenance work for 

the district. Bryan previously worked for Anderson Pacific during the Phase I upgrade 

and now has his own business. Bryan has a unique understanding of the District’s 

electrical system and is very familiar with District standards. Qualified industrial 

electrical firms are difficult to find due to the economic environment and overall lack of 

skilled industrial electricians. Bryan’s hourly rate is less than other firms and he has the 

required availability. Time and material rate sheets were requested from 3 firms and 

Bryan Mailey Electric had the lowest cost.  

 

The District is also able to provide most of the material which result in significant cost 

savings by avoiding the contractor markup.  

 

By utilizing a “not to exceed” time and material contract, staff is able to issue one 

contract while still managing the budget through the District work order and purchase 

order system.   

85

85



 

 

FUNDING 

 

The 2019‐20 Plant Maintenance Budget $150,000 

The 2019‐20 Collections Budget $50,000 

The 2019‐20 Reclamation Budget $20,000 

 

 

86

86



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐33 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER 

INTO A CONTRACT WITH MAILEY ELECTRIC FOR ELECTRICAL 

SERVICES IN FISCAL YEAR 2019‐20 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$220,000 

 

‐oOo‐ 

 

WHEREAS, the District requires the services of a qualified electrician on 

an ongoing basis for various projects at the treatment plant facility and the 

pump stations; and 

WHEREAS, the District has vetted various local electrical firms and has 

determined that Mailey Electric has the necessary expertise and has been well 

satisfied with their work to date; and 

WHEREAS, staff has determined the District would be better served by a 

ʺnot to exceedʺ contract which contains defined insurance requirements, 

permitting and payment requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the benefit of having an electrical firm on contract will 

increase efficiency and ensure that we are able to schedule work involving 

electrical needs in advance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE  IT RESOLVED by  the Board of Directors of  the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District, which  is  convinced by  the  staff  report  and 

87

87



presentation made   on  July 225, 2019  that  this proposal has merit and hereby 

authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract with Mailey Electric for 

fiscal year 2019‐20 in an amount not to exceed 

$220,000. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 

the Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on July 25, 2019, by the following 

vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS:  

 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  

                   _______________________ 

President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

88

88



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    July 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  2019‐20 Engineering and Programming Contract for Informative Controls 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to execute a 

contract with Informative Controls for an amount not to exceed $310,000 for fiscal year 

2019‐20 for Automation Control and Engineering Services.  
 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The District continues the migration of the SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data 

Acquisition) System and upgrade of the PLC (Programmable Logic Controllers) 

hardware and programming.  

 

A critical component of this system is the visualization screens, alarming and data 

logging. This contract would continue the work of migrating the alarms and the screens 

to the new system. The work would also include: 

 

 Design and upgrade of hardware for the microturbine system and integration of 

the microturbines, boiler and flare.  

 Continued improvement of the aeration system controls.  

 Migration of remaining RSView32 treatment plant screens.  

 Improved influent pump controls and alarming.  

 Secondary clarifier SCADA speed control.  

 

By utilizing a “not to exceed” time and material contract, staff is able to issue one 

contract while still managing the budget through the District work order and purchase 

order system.   

 

89

89



The District evaluated multiple system integrators and determined that Informative 

Controls could provide the best solution due to onsite availability and extensive 

experience migrating SCADA systems.  

 

FUNDING 

 

The 2019‐20 Capital Budget PLC Programming Update project.  $60,000 

The 2019‐20 Maintenance Budget. $200,000.  

The 2019‐20 Reclamation Budget. $50,000. 

90

90



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐34 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER 

INTO A CONTRACT WITH INFORMATIVE CONTROLS FOR 

INTEGRATION SERVICES IN FISCAL YEAR 2019‐20 IN AN AMOUNT 

NOT TO EXCEED $310,000 

 

‐oOo‐ 

 

WHEREAS, the District requires the services of a qualified integrator on 

an ongoing basis for continued migration of the Supervisory Control and Data 

Acquisition (SCADA) System and upgrade of the Programmable Logic 

Controllers (PLC) hardware and programming; and 

WHEREAS, the District has utilized Informative Controls in the past and 

determined that they have the necessary expertise and has been well satisfied 

with their work to date to allow them to continue the work of migrating the 

alarms and screens to the new system; and 

WHEREAS, staff has determined the District would be better served by a 

ʺnot to exceedʺ contract which contains defined insurance requirements, 

permitting and payment requirements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE  IT RESOLVED by  the Board of Directors of  the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District, which  is  convinced by  the  staff  report  and 

presentation made    on  July  25,  2019  that  this  proposal  has merit  and  hereby 

91

91



authorizes  the  General  Manager  to  enter  into  a  contract  with  Informative 

Controls for fiscal year 2019‐20 in an amount not to exceed $310,000. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 

the Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on July 25, 2019, by the following 

vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS:  

 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  

                   _______________________ 

President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

92

92



 
STAFF REPORT       
                 

 

   
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 

 

Subject:    #18‐07 ‐ Invitation to Bid Digester No. 1 Cleaning 

 

Date:    July 25, 2019 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution to authorize staff to 

invite  bids  for  purging,  dewatering,  and  cleaning  of  the  inside  of Digester No.  1  to 

remove it from service. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Project #18‐07 is in the beginning stages. Detailed bid documents have been developed 

by CAWD staff, and staff is ready to initiate the public bidding process.  

 

The new Digester No. 2 installed in the Phase 1 WWTP Rehabilitation Project has been 

online  for about 1 year and has performed continuously without any problems. Now 

that Digester No.  2 has been proven  to  function well, Plant  Staff  is planning  to  take 

Digester No. 1 offline for an extended period. To take the Digester offline will require 

purging  of  the  gas  dome with  inert  gas,  draining  the  tank,  removing  accumulated 

sediment, and pressure washing the inside of the digester. Digester No. 1 has not been 

taken  offline  and  drained  for  about  20  years  and  so  it  is  assumed  there  will  be  a 

significant amount of accumulated sediment to remove. 

 

Taking Digester No. 1 offline is important to reduce the energy use currently required 

to  mix  and  recirculate  this  tank.  Digester  No.  1  is  scheduled  for  rehabilitation  of 

structural components (cover and walls) and piping in about 5 years from now and will 

 

93

93



remain offline until repairs are developed and implemented. 

 

The cleaning is likely to begin in the Fall ‐ accounting for the time required for bidding, 

award, and contractor mobilization. 

 

 

FUNDING 

     

The FY19/20 CAWD Treatment Plant Long Term Capital Budget  includes $125,000 for 

Item #5 ‐ “Digester No. 1 Cleaning”. 

94

94



 
� �

RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐35 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING INVITING BIDS FOR “DIGESTER NO. 1 CLEANING” 

 
-oOo- 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has received and reviewed staff’s report 

regarding Digester No. 1 Cleaning invitation for bids; 

WHEREAS, the bid plans and specifications are on file and have been discussed 

this date with the Board by the District Manager; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District, as follows: 

1.  That the Digester No. 1 Cleaning plans and specifications are hereby 

authorized for bidding. 

2.  That sealed proposals or bids are hereby called for with regard to the 

aforesaid Project. 

3.   That the District staff is hereby directed to publish a Notice requesting bids 

for the aforesaid ʺDigester No. 1 Cleaningʺ project once a week for two (2) consecutive 

weeks in a newspaper of general circulation published in the District. Said publications 

shall not be less than five (5) days apart and the first publication shall be at least ten (10) 

days before the date fixed for the opening of bids. Said Notice shall refer to the plans and 

specifications on file in the office of the District. 

4.  Sealed proposals or bids shall be delivered to the Carmel Area Wastewater 

District on or before the time and date specified in the published Notice, at the office of 

95

95



 
� �

the District, 3945 Rio Road, Post Office Box 221428, Carmel, California, 93922, said time 

being not less than ten (10) days from the time of the first publication of the Notice. Bids 

will be publicly opened and examined on said date and hour by the Plant Engineer and 

will be referred to and considered by the Carmel Area Wastewater District Board at its 

next regular meeting following the opening of the bids in the Board Room of the District 

Office, 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, California. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on July 25th, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS:   

 

____________________________ 

   President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

  Secretary to the Board      

96

96



 
STAFF REPORT       
                 

 

   
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 

 

Subject:    #18‐01  –  Design  Budget  Amendment  for  Elec/Mech  Rehabilitation  and 

Sludge Holding Tank Project  

 

Date:    July 25, 2019 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It  is  recommended  that  the  Board  of Directors  approve  a  resolution  to  authorize  a 

budget  amendment  for  additional  design  work  by  Kennedy/Jenks  Consultants 

associated  with  Project  #18‐01  Elec/Mech  Rehabilitation  and  Sludge  Holding  Tank 

Project in the amount of $39,170. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 

Project  #18‐01  is  in  the  95%  design  stage meaning  that  design  is  near  completion. 

During  the  FY19/20  budget  process CAWD  staff  determined  that  it would  be more 

efficient  to  combine  a  few  additional  small  rehabilitation  projects  into  the  larger 

“Elec/Mech Rehabilitation” Project that were previously envisioned to be completed as 

separate in‐house projects. 

 

The work proposed to be added is adjacent to other work in the #18‐01 design in the 

Chlorine Contact Building and the Effluent Pump Station. The work includes 

disinfection analyzer rehabilitation, Effluent Pump Station large bubble mixing system 

(Reclamation), and design of Input/Output wiring for the new Chlorination Building 

Programmable Logic Controller. The work associated with these items was originally 

estimated to cost about $200,000 to design and complete the installation in‐house. 

Including this work in the larger project will allow for integration of design and 

 

97

97



streamlined implementation.  

 

FUNDING 
     

The Kennedy/Jenks  fee  for proposed design  and bid  services was originally  $874,985 

and this $39,170 amendment is the only budget amendment to date. Funding will come 

from FY19/20 CAWD Treatment Plant Long Term Capital Budget for Item #1. 

 

 

98

98



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐36 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED 

CONTRACT WITH KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN 

AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $39,170 TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL DESIGN SERVICES 

FOR THE “WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT (WWTP) ELEC/MECH REHAB AND 

SLUDGE HOLDING TANK PROJECT” 

 
-oOo- 

 
 WHEREAS, the District requires additional professional services from Kennedy/Jenks 

Consultants for WWTP rehabilitation design associated with chlorine analyzers, effluent wet 

well mixing, and programmable logic controls; and 

  WHEREAS, Kennedy/Jenks Consultants has performed adequately under the existing 

contract previously authorized by the Board and has demonstrated expertise in the field of 

services required;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into an 

amended professional services agreement to increase the prior contract amount by $39,170, with 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants for additional design scope for the “WWTP Elec/Mech 

Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Project”. 

  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on July 25, 2019, by the following vote: 

  AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

  NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

  ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

99

99



 

  

 

               _____________________________ 

                President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

  Secretary of the Board 

100

100



 

STAFF REPORT         

 

               
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 

 

Subject:    Contract Award Recommendation –  

    Monte Verde Sewer at 2nd Avenue Sewer Replacement  

    Project #19‐11 

 

Date:     July 25, 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

After review of the bid proposals, staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 

 Adopt  a  resolution  awarding  a  contract  for  the Monte Verde  Extension  at  2nd 

Avenue Sewer Replacement project to the lowest qualified responsible bidder.  

 Authorize  the General Manager  to  sign and execute a contract with  the  lowest 

qualified bidder  for construction of the project. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The board approved Resolution No. 2019‐19 on May 30, 2019 authorizing solicitation of 

bids for construction of the Monte Verde at 2nd Avenue project. A mandatory pre‐bid 

site visit was conducted on June 25, 2019 with representatives from five construction 

companies in attendance. 

 

Two sealed bids were opened on July 18, 2019 at the District office and the results are 

provided in the following table. 

 

BIDDER  BID AMOUNT 

Engineer’s Estimate  $80,000 

Don Chapin Company    $105,540 

Monterey Peninsula Engineering $91,100 

 

101

101



The lowest qualified responsible bidder was determined to be Monterey Peninsula 

Engineering in the amount of $91,100.  The bid tabulation is provided below.  The 

Engineer’s Estimate for the project is $80,000. 

 

Monterey Peninsula Engineering Bid Tabulation 

Item 
No. 

Description  Quantity  Unit  Unit 
Price 

Total 

1. 
Mobilization/Demobilization to include mobilizing labor, 

equipment and materials to the job site, all insurance 

bonding costs, cleanup and demobilization.  1  LS  10,000  10,000 

2. 
Dewater, if required, and sustain an adequately‐sized 

sewer bypass system throughout duration of the 

project.  1  LS  2,500  2,500 

3.   Road repair, subgrade preparation and all baserock and 

asphalt required to repair private road.  1  LS  12,000  12,000 

4.  Sewer line excavation and off haul of materials 

unsuitable for backfill.  1  LS  1,000  1,000 

5.  Connect existing lateral to new main  5  EA  2500  12,500 

6. 
Sewer line replacement, 8” diameter pipe meeting 

specifications. Specify  Material: C900 SDR26 green pipe  380  LFt  125  47,500 

7. 
Trench safety and shoring.  1  LS  500  500 

8.  
Storm water compliance.  1  LS  100  100 

9.  Traffic Control and site safety.  1  LS  5,000  5000 

TOTAL BID AMOUNT    $91,100 

 

FUNDING 

 

The FY19/20 CAWD  Collections Capital Budget includes $200,000 for  sewer lines. 

 

102

102



 
� �

RESOLUTION NO. 19‐37 

 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BID FOR THE “MONTE 

VERDE EXTENSION AND 2ND AVENUE SEWER LINE REPLACEMENT” AND 

AUTHORIZING GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH THE 

LOWEST QUALIFIED BIDDER IN THE AMOUNT OF $91,100 

 
-oOo- 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors authorized solicitation for bids for the Monte 

Verde Extension and 2nd Avenue Sewer Replacement project on May 30, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, there were two bids received at the bid opening on July 18, 2019 and the 

lowest responsible bid was determined to be Monterey Peninsula Engineering (MPE); and 

  WHEREAS, the Engineer’s Estimate for the project was $80,000 and all bids were 

competitive between bidders. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District, as follows: 

1.  That the Board accepts the bid of the lowest responsible bidder (i.e. MPE) and 

awards the contract for the above‐mentioned project to said bidder at the price specified in 

the bid of $91,100. 

2.  That the Board authorizes the General Manager to approve project change 

orders not to exceed 5% of bid amount ($4,555). 

3.  That the Board authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute a 

written contract with the successful bidder, MPE, for an amount not to exceed $91,100. 

 

 

103

103



 
� �

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on July 25, 2019  by the following vote: 

AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS:   

 

____________________________ 

   President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

  Secretary to the Board      

104

104



 

STAFF REPORT         

 

               
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 

 

Subject:    Contract Award Recommendation –  

    Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement  

    Project #18‐17 

 

Date:     July 25, 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

After review of the bid proposals, staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 

 Adopt  a  resolution  determining  and  designating  the  lowest  responsive  and 

responsible bidder for  the Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project.  

 Consistent with the Notice to Bidders, upon grant funding for the Project being 

secured from the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) 

Hazard Mitigation Grant program, award a contract to the low bidder.  

 Contingent upon award of the contract, authorize the General Manager to execute 

the contract with the low bidder for construction of the Project. 

 If  the award  is not made prior  to August 22, 2019,    the  time  through which all 

bidders are required to hold open their bids, authorize staff to either: (1) negotiate 

with the designated low bidder concerning  an extension of the time during which 

the low bidder will hold open its bid; or (2) reject all bids and cancel the Project. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The Board approved Resolution No. 2019‐13 on June 27, 2019 authorizing solicitation of 

bids for construction of the Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project, contingent on 

receiving grant funding. A mandatory pre‐bid site visit was conducted on July 16, 2019 

with representatives from four construction companies in attendance, a representative 

from TT Technologies (manufacturer of pipe bursting equipment), and representatives 

 

105

105



from MNS Engineering (the design engineer). 

 

Sealed bids were opened on July 23, 2019 at the District office and the results will be 

presented to your Board at the July 25, 2019 Board meeting.  In addition, staff will be in 

contact with Cal OES in order to determine if grant funding will provide an update to 

your Board at the meeting.  

   

The Engineer’s Estimate for the project is $1.12 million. 

 

FUNDING 

 

The FY 19/20 CAWD Collections Capital Budget includes $1.4 million for this project. 

 

106

106



107

107



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐38 

 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING AND DESIGNATING THE LOWEST 

RESPONSIBLE BIDDER FOR HATTON CANYON PIPELINE 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT, AND CONSISTENT WITH NOTICE TO 

BIDDERS UPON RECEIPT OF GRANT FUNDING, AWARD A CONTRACT 

TO THE LOWER BIDDER, AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER 

TO EXECUTE SAID CONTRACT WITH THE LOW BIDDER, AND IF THE 

GRANT FUNDING IS NOT SECURED PRIOR TO AUGUST 22, 2019 

AUTHORIZE STAFF TO EITHER NEGOTIATE AN EXTENTION WITH 

THE DESIGNATED LOW BIDDER OR REJECT ALL BIDS AND CANCEL 

THE PROJECT 

 

‐oOo‐ 

 

WHEREAS, the District authorized solicitation of bids for construction of 

the Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project at its regular June 27, 2019 

meeting contingent on receiving FEMA grant funding; and 

WHEREAS, the District will open sealed bids on June 23, 2019 and 

present the results to the Board at its July 25, 2019 meeting; and 

WHEREAS, staff will remain in contact with FEMA to determine if grant 

funding is awarded; and 

WHEREAS, the Board determines and designates KJ Woods 

Construction, Inc. as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the 

Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project and consistent with the Notice to 

Bidders, upon grant funding for the project being secured from the California 

108

108



Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) Hazard Mitigation Grant 

Program awards a contract to the low bidder and contingent upon award of 

the contract authorizes the General Manager to execute said contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District, which is convinced by the staff report and 

presentation made on July 25, 2019 that:  

 It determines  and designates KJ Woods Construction,  Inc.    as  the 

lowest  responsible  and  responsive  bidder  for  the Hatton Canyon 

Pipeline Replacement Project in the amount of $ 1,038,000; and 

 Consistent with  the Notice  to Bidders, upon grant  funding  for  the 

Project  being  secured  from  CalOES  Hazard  Mitigation  Grant 

program awards a contract to KJ Woods Construction, Inc.; and 

 Authorizes  the General Manager  to execute said contract with KJ Woods 

Construction, Inc.  contingent upon securing grant funding; and 

 If the grant funding is not secured prior to August 22, 2019, staff is 

authorized  to  either  (1) negotiate with  the designated  low  bidder 

concerning an extension of the time during which the low bidder will 

hold open its bid; or (2) reject all bids and cancel the Project. 

 

109

109



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 

the Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on July 25, 2019, by the following 

vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS:  

 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  

                   _______________________ 

President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

110

110



111

111



112

112



 
STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    July 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  General Manager Salary Adjustment 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends the Board pass a motion approving the action of the Salary & Benefits 

Committee to increase the General Manager’s compensation package by 2% retroactive to 

July 1, 2018. 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

In December 2018 the Salary & Benefits Committee presented a proposal to the General 

Manager that offered a 2.0% incentive for the implementation of a 100% “hands off” 

Succession Plan for a minimum of 3 weeks.  The 2% incentive objective, when 

completed, was to be retroactive to July 1, 2018. 

 

The Salary & Benefit Committee met on July 16, 2019 to discuss the General Manager’s 

satisfactory completion of this goal prior to June 30, 2019 deadline.  The Committee 

recommended the incentive pay be awarded and brought to the full Board for award as 

stated in the December 2, 208 document.  

 

 

FUNDING 

 

There are enough funds available in the Administration O&M budget to cover this 

incentive pay. The retroactive amount is $3,867. 

113

113



114

114



 
STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    July 25, 2019 

 

Subject:  Pebble Beach Community Services District – Regular Board Meeting June 

28, 2019 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Agenda items from the June 28, 2019 meeting that are of specific interest to this District: 

 

 The District was awarded the Transparency Certificate of Excellence by the 

Special District Leadership Foundation. 

 

 Total cash balance at the end of May 2019 was $21.9M; of that amount, $13.0M 

was designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves.  Property taxes 

comprise roughly 85% of District revenues with user fees making up 12%. 

 

 Forest Lake Reservoir held 105 MG (million gallons) of recycled water or 91% of 

permitted capacity.  Current storage volume is 38% above the historic average of 

76 MG. 

 

 Total irrigation water demand for the 2019 calendar year through May was 180 

AF (acre feet).  Total demand for the calendar year is 41% below the 5‐year 

average of 306AF and 38% below the 24‐year average annual usage of 289 AF.  

The month of May reflected a net storage increase of approximately 4 MG at 

Forest Lake Reservoir due to late season rainfall. 

 

 Average daily wastewater flow of 455,000 GPD was measured in May at the 

PBCSD‐Carmel gate.  This represents 36% of the total flow at the CAWD 

treatment facility.  The measured PBCSD flow was 18% above the five‐year 

average of 386,000 GPD for the month of May; the CAWD total flow was 2% 

above the five‐year average of 1,246,000 GPD for May.   

115

115



 

 Currently two facilities, the 4th Fairway Diversion and MPCC No. 9 Well are 

online.  Startup for all three facilities was initiated on April 22nd noting a failed 

pump controller on MPCC No. 8 Well.  Total production for the 2019 calendar 

year‐to‐date is approximately 2.4 million gallons. 

 

 The Board approved and agreement with Tank Industry Consultants to provide 

engineering services for the Reclamation Storage Tank Rehabilitation Project for 

an amount not to exceed $150K. 

 

 The Board approved an agreement with Granite Drilling Company for drilling 

services required for a new water well located near China Rock for a cost not to 

exceed $100K. 

 

 Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) 

show: 

 

MONTH  TOTAL  CAWD FLOW  PBCSD FLOW  PBCSD 

July ‐ 18  36.645  25.589  11.056  30.171% 

Aug – 18  36.346  25.482  10.864  29.890% 

Sept ‐ 18  33.219  23.073  10.146  30.543% 

Oct ‐ 18  32.829  22.915  9.914  30.199% 

Nov‐18  33.762  23.837  9.925  29.397% 

Dec‐18  35.452  24.846  10.606  29.917% 

Jan ‐ 19  39.778  27.204  12.574  31.610% 

Feb ‐ 19  65.276  40.133  25.143  38.518% 

Mar ‐ 19  57.969  34.308  23.661  40.817% 

Apr ‐ 19  39.235  25.143  14.092  35.917% 

May ‐ 19  39.519  25.428  14.091  35.656% 

Total  450.030  297.958  152.072  33.792% 

 

116

116



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:  Board of Directors 

 

From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:  July 25, 2019 

 

Subject: Quarterly Progress Report (April – June 2019) 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

 

This report is informational only – no action is required.  The Board requested a quarterly 

update of progress made throughout the District.  This report is designed to offer a high- 

level view of the second quarter of 2019. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 

General Management 

• We completed the revision to the Uniform Plumbing Ordinance, New Standard 

Plans and Specifications, and a new Administrative Penalties Ordinance.  This 

involved the assistance of a Board committee.  But this particular project has 

been “in process” for about 5 years.  I’ve listed it here but honestly, much of the 

kudos should go to engineering and collection departments who finally made 

this project a reality. 

 

• We’ve initiated a second “mass” annexation that will go out as far into Carmel 

Valley as Mid Valley Shopping Center and then south to Yankee Point and the 

Spindrift neighborhoods.  The need in the community is there, and we believe 

that with the County LAMP (Local Agency Management Plan) we should make 

the effort to serve the community.  When we get the infrastructure in to Carmel 

Valley Manor we believe that will open the gates to many other potential 

connections.   

 

• We are working with multiple groups to encourage connection to the District.  

This goes hand in hand with the mass annexation, but also involves assisting in 

the formation of local assessment districts to aid in the financing.  Currently we 

are working with Carmel Valley Manor and Corona Road residents.  

 

We are proceeding with project to upgrade programmable logic control  

  

117

117



118

118



119

119



120

120



121

121


	01. Board Packet Cover
	03.A 06-27-19 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	03.B 07-15-19 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	04. 2019.06.30 H&W June Independent Annountants Report
	05. CAWD Cash Receipts & Disbursements - June 2019
	06. CAWD Disbursements - June 2019
	07. Reclamation Disbursements - June 2019
	08. Financial Stmt - June 2019
	09.A Collection Jun 19 Board Staff Report
	09.B Collections June 19 Cleaning Map April -May- June
	09.C Sewer lateral Compliance Cert Example
	10. Safety and Regulatory Staff Report June 2019
	11. Treatment Facility Ops Report-2019 June, May, April Corrected 7.24.19
	12. Lab & Environmental Compliance-Staff Report June 2019
	13. Capital Projects Implementation Plan 7-15-19
	14. Operations Staff Report- June 2019
	15. Maintenance-Staff Report June 2019
	16. Principal Engineering Staff Report-June 2019
	17.A Vac-Con Combination Truck Purchase $408,907-Staff Report
	17.B RES 2019-31 Vacon Sewer Cleaning Truck
	18.A #18-28 Landscape Contract Hall Landscape Design for WWTP $27,375
	18.B CAWD Rio Rd Landscape Proposal 12-13-2018R
	07-25-19 Regular Board Packet working version for Domine 79
	07-25-19 Regular Board Packet working version for Domine 80
	07-25-19 Regular Board Packet working version for Domine 81
	07-25-19 Regular Board Packet working version for Domine 82
	07-25-19 Regular Board Packet working version for Domine 83

	18.C RES 2019-32 Contract with Hall Landscape Design for WWTP Tree Planning
	19.A Electric Contract - Mailey Electric Staff Report
	19.B Res 2019-33 Electric Contract - Mailey Electric
	20.A Informative Controls- July 2019 Staff Report
	20.B Res 2019-34 Integration Contract - Informative Controls$310K
	21.A #18-07 Invitation to Auth to Bid Contract Work - Digester No. 1 Cleaning
	21.B RES 2019-35  Auth to Bid Digester No. 1 Cleaning #18-07
	22.A #18-01 Design Budget Kennedy Jenks Amendment Sludge Holding Tank
	22.B RES 2019-36 Kennedy Jenks Budget Amendment-39,170K Sludge Holding
	23.A #19-11 Contract Award Recommendation-Monte Verde Sewer Line Replacement-Staff Report June 2019
	23.B.1 RES 2019-37 Accepting Lowest ResponsibleBid & Auth GM to Execute LQB-Est$80K-NTE $91,100
	24.A Hatton Canyon - Bid Accept - Staff Report
	24.B Hatton Canhyon Sewer Replacement - KJ Woods Construction - BID Tabulation
	24.C RES 2019-38 Contract Award -  Hatton Canyon amended
	25.A 2018-19 Reimbursement Report - Staff Report
	25.B 2018-19 Annual Reimbursement Report Over 100
	26.A GM Salary 07-25-19 - Staff Report
	26.B GM Compensation memo 12-13-18
	27. PBCSD  06-28-19
	28. Qtrly Staff Report April - June 2019-Final Revised



